
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020) came into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable 
councils to hold remote committee meetings during the 
Covid 19 pandemic period. This is to ensure local authorities 
can conduct business during this current public health 
emergency. 

This meeting will be held remotely under these regulations, 
via Zoom. 

Please ask for: 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

23 February 2021 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 4 March 2021 at 
7.30 pm via Zoom. 
 

 

Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2021 
(previously circulated).  
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 
11  
 

Public Document Pack



5.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

7.   INTRODUCTION OF PARKING RESTRICTIONS, IN TOWN CENTRE CAR 
PARKS, HATFIELD (Pages 7 - 62) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive setting out proposed parking restrictions for the new 
multi-storey car park, Kennelwood Lane car park and Dog Kennel Lane car park; 
including the outcome of the informal and statutory consultation. 
 

8.   NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK - DESIGN CODE 
CONSULTATION (Pages 63 - 66) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
regarding Government consultation on changes to the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) as well as on proposals for a National Model Design Code and 
a Guidance Note for Design Codes. 
 

9.   HERTFORDSHIRE WASTE LOCAL PLAN - DRAFT CONSULTATION (Pages 67 - 
76) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
Hertfordshire County Council’s consultation on its Waste Local Plan. 
 

10.   HOUSING DELIVERY TEST ACTION PLAN (Pages 77 - 90) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
outlining the Housing Delivery Test Action Plan, which assess the causes of under-
delivery and to identify actions to increase delivery in future years. 
 

11.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

12.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 13 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 

 



 
PART II 

 

13.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 
 

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman) 

S.Kasumu (Vice-Chairman) 
A.Chesterman 
B.Fitzsimon 
G.Hayes 
T.Kingsbury 
 

J.Quinton 
D.Richardson 
A Rohale 
P.Shah 
P.Zukowskyj 
 

 Co-opted Members:- 
Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
To be appointed 

 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
Item No: 6 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 4 MARCH 2021 
 
QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC  
 
1. Question from Jackie Warren 

I work as a Practice Nurse at Lister House Surgery and together with my 
colleagues have worked tirelessly during the pandemic to provide essential 
services.  In February 2020 we were asked to pay an annual charge of £50 to 
park in one of the Council owned car parks and now with the opening of the 
Common car park this has now risen to £200 per year which for many people 
working in Hatfield, on the minimum wage, will find it difficult to find. I do not 
expect the parking to be free but an increase of 300% is unfair and misjudged, 
especially in these difficult economic times.   
 
Will the Council consider not applying these increased charges as it penalises 
those that can least afford it, like those of us that work within the NHS. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

1 

 

 

Part I 

Item No: 0 
Main author: Matthew McCann 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Hatfield Central 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 4 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

INTRODUCTION OF PARKING RESTRICTIONS, IN TOWN CENTRE CAR PARKS, 
HATFIELD 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The new multi-storey car park (MSCP) is part of the Hatfield Renewal 
Partnership proposals - a partnership of key local authorities, landowners and 
educational institutions who came together to develop a shared vision and plan 
for the town's long-term regeneration. The build costs of the multi-storey are part-
funded by a £4.8m contribution from the Local Enterprise Partnership, 
recognising the part it will play in wider regeneration. These wider plans will 
boost the local economy, helping us attract a better mix of new shops and 
businesses by making the town centre a busier, more vibrant place to spend 
time. 

1.2 Once opened, the MSCP will be managed by Parking Services, in line with other 
car parks across the borough.  

1.3 This report sets out the proposed parking restrictions for the new MSCP, 
Kennelwood Lane and Dog Kennel Lane Car Parks, including the outcome of the 
informal and statutory consultation.   

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Panel consider the case for the creation of the “The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Various Car Parks, Hatfield) Off-Street Parking Places) Order 2021” (the 
Order) and recommends that Cabinet agrees to proceed with the creation of the 
Order as advertised. 

2.2 In making the above recommendation, the Panel consider the objections 
received as well as the issues raised in paragraph 15 of this report, relating to 
Equality and Diversity considerations.  

3 Explanation 

3.1 Hatfield Town Centre is currently undergoing a wide regeneration programme. 
Part of the programme included the building of the new MSCP in The Common 
which is on track to complete in mid-March 2021. The build costs were part-
funded by a £4.8m contribution from the Local Enterprise Partnership, 
recognising the part it will play in wider regeneration. These wider plans will 
boost the local economy, helping us attract a better mix of new shops and 
businesses by making the town centre a busier, more vibrant place to spend 
time.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



 

 

2 

 

3.2 Over a third of the town centre is currently used for surface-level car parking. The 
MSCP, located on The Common car park, consolidates this parking in one place, 
freeing up sites elsewhere for new homes, shops, and leisure. 

3.3 In line with the planning application approved by the Development Management 
Committee, there will be a total of 420 car park spaces, including 18 disabled 
bays and 8 electric vehicle (EV) charge points in the MSCP. 

3.4 The current time limit restrictions prevent commuters parking in the town centre. 
However, businesses have previously asked for more flexible long stay options. 
Therefore, charging for a longer stay addresses businesses' concerns whilst 
preventing the misuse of the cark park by those not visiting the town.  

3.5 As part of the introduction of restrictions in the MSCP, to make parking easier to 
promote and ensure a consistent approach, changes to restrictions are proposed 
in Kennelwood Lane and Dog Kennel car parks to better support parking 
provision for businesses, residents and visitors.   

3.6 The proposed restrictions including charges could start in the week commencing 
17th May 2021. Between opening of the MSCP and 17th May, no restrictions 
would exist in the MSCP. This would enable the Order to be finalised, including 
relevant signage. It will also allow time for season tickets to be 
purchased/introduced. It is proposed that the new restrictions in Kennelwood 
Lane and Dog Kennel Lane would also come into effect on the same date. 
Parking will be monitored during this period. 

3.7 Season tickets would only be available for purchase by local workers/residents 
upon proof provided. The boundary for eligibility would be defined as The 
Common/Lemsford Road/Queensway/Wellfield Road, including Gracemead 
House.  

3.8 It is proposed that the car parks will be open 24 hours a day, 7 days per week 
and will be available for short stay, long stay and season tickets. Restrictions are 
proposed to apply Monday to Saturday 7am to 6pm in line with Welwyn Garden 
City car parks.  

3.9 The charges are summarised in the Tables below and form part of the approved 
2021/22 fees and charges subject to the creation of the Order. It should be noted 
that this tariff was supported by the majority of Members sitting on the Hatfield 
Town Centre Regeneration Board (the Board). Cabinet also received a report on 
5th January 2021. 

Table 1: MSCP Car Park Charges 

Monday- Saturday 7am to 6pm First 3 Hours Free 

3-4 Hours: £3.50 

Over 4 Hours: £6.50 (All Day) 

Sunday and Bank Holiday Free 

Season Tickets (12 Months) 

Season Tickets (quarterly) 

£200 

£50 

 

Page 8



 

 

3 

 

Table 2: Other Car Park Arrangements 

Kennelwood Lane car park Charges apply as per Table 1. 

Link Drive car park Permit holders only. 

Dog Kennel Lane car park Season tickets only as per charges in 
Table 1.  

3.10 Season tickets are set at £200 per year - which works out at approximately 70p-
85p per day for local workers (depending on number of working days) to park in 
the town centre. The council is subsidising season tickets at this price. Season 
tickets can also be purchased on a quarterly basis at £50 to provide more 
flexibility. 

Summary of Business Consultation Responses 

3.11 In agreement with the Board, the Parking team carried out a consultation survey 
with all local businesses to gauge their views on their perceived parking 
challenges in the town centre. 109 business contacts were contacted via email, 
and 57 separate business responses were received. 

3.12 This survey identified: 

 63% of responses said employees have a problem finding a parking 
space. 

 85% said their customers rely upon car parks.  

 17.5% said customers needed to park for more than 3 hours.  

3.13 When asked if there should be a minimum free period of parking: 

 12% said 4 hours or more, with the rest saying 3 hours or less or no 
free period. 

 95% said they would want to see free parking in the evenings and on 
Sundays. 

3.14 The Board also received a copy of the business parking survey results at the 
December meeting when tariffs were discussed.  

3.15 The statutory consultation period – where formal objections can be made - began 
on 13th January 2021 and ran until 5th February. 

3.16 On 13th January 2021 a public Notice of Intent proposing “The Borough of 
Welwyn Hatfield (Various Car Parks, Hatfield) Off-Street Parking Places) 
Order 2021” was advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. (Appendix B). 

3.17 Notices were erected within Hatfield Town Centre and the car parks impacted 
and letters posted to 305 properties within the town. An email with a copy of the 
letter was also sent to traders within Hatfield also (Appendix C). QR codes were 
included for the first time on the public notice to enable those to scan the code to 
view the proposals on the dedicated webpage.  

3.18 Plans illustrating the proposals for each car park are attached to this report. 
(Appendix D). 

  

Page 9



 

 

4 

 

4 Objections  

4.1 There are twenty-eight formal objections pertaining to the proposals throughout 
Hatfield Car Parks (Appendix A), of which: 

4.1.1 Eighteen relate solely to the price of the season tickets. the other objections also 
highlight season ticket prices along with other concerns.  

4.1.2 Eleven objections came from two estate agent businesses located within Market 
Place.  

4.2 The following table summarises the objections and Council’s responses to these 
objections.  

  

Page 10



 

 

 

5 

 

 

 Objection Council’s response 

1 “I would expect to see these sorts of charges 
heading towards Central London however not in 
Hatfield” 

The £200 price is set at a subsidised rate and is significantly cheaper than other 
season tickets when compared to other local council. For example, the next 
cheapest is Hertsmere at £440 per year, followed by Aylesbury £583, North Herts 
at £697, St Albans £790 and Watford £1,200. 

2 “that there will no longer be any free parking 
around the centre or surrounding areas… 
parking should be free for Hatfield residents or 
extremely discounted due to the poverty in the 
area.” 

Three hours free parking will still be available under these proposals. In the 
business survey, businesses indicated that 82.5% of customers are likely to stay 
for under 3 hours.  

The option to pay for parking over 3 hours is to enable shoppers and visitors to the 
town to pay to park for longer making a small contribution to the upkeep of the 
parking facility.  

As highlighted above, the season tickets for local workers is already heavily 
discounted compared to the daily rate and comparable car parks in nearby towns.  

3 “Part time working? There should be the option 
to share a permit, or a way of choosing specific 
days to park. This works at Hunters Bridge car 
park”  

When ANPR was in operation in Hunters Bridge, it did provide an option to allow 
two vehicles under one permit. ANPR is no longer permitted by use of local 
councils and the new permit system does not allow multiple vehicles to share a 
permit as it links to one vehicle registration.  

It is worth noting that the annual season ticket price in Hatfield is the equivalent of 
just under 31 working/parking days per year before it becomes cheaper than the 
£6.50 daily charge. It is therefore cost effective even for someone who worked just 
two days per week.  

4 “Daily rate for all day parking? Far too high” The daily rate is the same price as Welwyn Garden City, and £1.50 per day 
cheaper than Hatfield Railway Station. If all day parking was set too low it could 
lead to railway station commuters in the future parking in town centre car parks to 
avoid the current £8 per day at the railway station, reducing the number of spaces 
available for those who the spaces are meant for – local workers/residents and 
visitors. For comparison, the Galleria charge £8 for all day parking. 

P
age 11



 

 

6 

 

5 “can you confirm my B04 permit will remain valid 
for the year purchased November 2020-2021” 

All existing B04 permits will have any remaining time transferred onto a new 
season ticket free of charge. Parking Services will contact each permit holder in 
April/May to confirm which car park they can park in. The team will endeavour to 
accommodate all existing permit holders in their chosen car park before putting 
season tickets on general sale.  

6 “Haven’t been unable to purchase permits for all 
members of staff due to a waiting list” 

The current B04 permit scheme only includes 26 spaces in Dog Kennel Lane car 
park. When Link Drive was included in 2020, an additional 114 spaces were 
added. 175 permits were purchased to consider local workers who might work part 
time, along with the likelihood some of those would be on leave/holiday at any 
time. Throughout 2020, the Parking Team monitored demand in the car park which 
was reduced due to Covid-19 restrictions. This rose to a cap of 200 permits, some 
of which have since been cancelled or expired and now stands at 191. In the 
instance of this objector, it has been identified that the employees still awaiting a 
permit had not contacted us asking to be added to the waiting list, so we they were 
not contacted in 2021 to offer them the opportunity to purchase one.  

In the proposals, there would be an initial cap of 60 season tickets in Dog Kennel 
Lane, 25 Kennelwood Lane and 180 in the MSCP This would give an initial 265 
available, an increase of 74 on current number of permits available.  

Demand for permits will be monitored after parking restrictions are introduced and 
once Covid-19 restrictions start to lift. The Parking Team will also identify where 
permits balance each other out e.g. due to use on different days etc. to enable 
further to be sold if demand is high.  

7 “Cannot see that the introduction of paying for 
parking will encourage anyone to spend time in 
the town centre. Customers… will be under time 
constraints now and will object to paying once 
three hours has expired” 

Currently, visitors are only able to park up to 3 hours and if they stay for longer 
than this receive a PCN for overstaying. Therefore, visitors can stay for longer 
under the new proposed arrangement.  

In addition, Hatfield will continue to be the only town in Hertfordshire to offer up to 
3 hours free parking before any charges apply, which in turn makes the town 
centre offering more attractive. 

P
age 12



 

 

7 

 

8 “Is there a resident plan proposed? Or will these 
come under season ticket holders. If so, I cannot 
see that there are enough spaces available for 
business workers and residents of the town 
centre if you nominate only one car park for your 
season ticket” 

Eleven residents already hold permits to park under the current arrangement. 
Covid-19 aside, many residential properties are less likely to require parking during 
the daytime when the occupiers are out at work. Many residents may find the 3 
hour free tickets will suffice to park in Kennelwood Lane or the MSCP if they were 
to arrive home after 3pm/leave home for work before 10am. Often within town 
centres residents are less likely to own a vehicle, as is the case with many flats 
within other town centres. The cap on season tickets in the related car parks would 
also manage number of spaces available.  

9 “…Asda will no doubt make changes to their 
parking again” 

The Council is not aware of Asda making any plans to change their parking 
provision of 3 hours parking, and it would still match our offering of 3 hours free 
albeit with a different way of managing the stay. 

10 “Assurance that the demarcated bays permit 
parking bays in Kennelwood Lane car park 
(behind Queensway Health Centre) that is used 
by the NHS for the clinic will also be continued 
as per the current arrangement” 

These bays were introduced as a medium-term solution to allow Queensway 
Health Clinic to be able to buy visitor vouchers to allow patients, especially those 
with limited mobility to park close to the clinic. No vouchers have been purchased 
for over 4 years.  

By bringing these parking bays in line with the rest of the proposed parking 
restriction within the car park it will enable better use of ALL of the parking spaces, 
and will in fact benefit clinic staff who may hold a season ticket and all Kennelwood 
Lane season ticket holders in that they can choose to park in any available parking 
space within the car park (with the exception of disabled and EV bays unless 
eligible). 

11 “Costs of the parking permits… either be free or 
at the very least remain at the current price of 
£50 per year for the NHS Staff who operate at 
our Queensway Health Centre” 

There is also no current plan to offer a discount to local workers dependant on their 
career, the charge applies fairly to all local workers regardless of their job role or 
salary.  

The season tickets are already priced much lower than other areas as detailed 
above. 

12 “My suggestion is that books of scratch card 
style day tickets… be made available for 

There is no option within these proposals for scratch card tickets and this would 
require a new Order to be advertised and consulted upon to bring in a new permit 

P
age 13



 

 

8 

 

business like ours” type.    

13 “Could you please explain the way in which 
people will be buying their tickets please?” 

New parking payment options in Kennelwood Lane and the MSCP would be 
utilised in two ways. Parking machines will be in the car parks and residents and 
visitors can pay via card/cash at the machines or online and via phone. 

Residents and visitors will be required to pay on arrival and display their ticket in 
their vehicle. In addition, tickets will also be required to be displayed for those 
staying for up to 3 hours for free.  

Annual or quarterly season tickets would be available to purchase via the Council’s 
permit system NSL Apply online, which is the same system used to manage 
resident parking permits and the current B04 business permits.  

14 “We feel a fairer solution…would be to have a 
block of “Surgery staff only” spaces allocated in 
the Multi Storey car park.” 

Although this option may seem fair to one organisation, it would not be fair to all 
other businesses and organisations within Hatfield who would not have their own 
reserved parking spaces.  

There would be times the surgery would not be open or have less staff, and the 
parking bays would then sit unused when they could be used by other users of the 
420-space car park. In the case of Lister House Surgery, it is opposite the new 
Multi Storey car park.  

15 “How can that degree of increase be justified 
when the result is further restrictions, NOT 
improved service/facilities” 

There has been no increase to business parking permits since introduced in 2013 
and has remained constant at £50 per year. Since that time, the number of spaces 
available has increased.  

The Multistorey car park does provide an improved service and more secure 
facility with better lighting, CCTV, and more parking available on one site closer to 
most businesses within the town.  

The Parking Team are also actively engaged in acquiring Park Mark award (safer 
parking status) for the car parks. 

16 “If you were, for instance, issuing a parking 
permit which covers all areas, including 

Many residents are in favour of on-street permits and the introduction of 
restrictions on the basis that their roads are not overfilled with local workers and 

P
age 14



 

 

9 

 

permitted street areas, than an increase to such 
a high amount could be justifiable” 

non-residents vehicles, therefore it is not considered feasible to introduce a TRO 
which applies to the car parks and on-street parking alike.  

In terms of estate agents and property maintenance companies, the Parking Team 
already offer the option to buy visitor vouchers for the zones that they manage and 
maintain properties in. The objector in question works for such an estate agent 
who already purchases visitor vouchers to maintain properties, which can then be 
given to whoever needs to access without it being limited to a vehicle registration.  

17 “What are the assurances you are giving us for 
safety walking to and from the multi storey car 
park or car park further away from our place of 
work?.” 

The new MSCP has CCTV installed, full lighting, as with many other public realm 
areas within the town. The Parking Team would also look to encourage businesses 
where possible to park in the car park either closest to work or the one they feel 
most comfortable with.  

The Parking Team are also actively engaged in acquiring Park Mark award (safer 
parking status) for the car parks.  

18 “When the new parking permits are allocated 
are Wrights staff going to be give the same 
carpark…so no one has to go to a car park on 
their own at night?” 

When the Parking Team contact existing permit holders to change to season 
tickets, officers will ask for their preferred car park of choice. The Parking Team will 
look to place people in their car park of choice and also look to group as many 
from the same company in the same car park where possible.  

19 “Deception by omission in constructing the multi-
storey car park without publicly identifying how 
costs of operation be met” 

Planning permission stage does not require costs and charges of the car park to 
be advertised at the time.  

20 “Material conflict of interest in promoting the 
order” 

The Council must promote the Order in this instance. Any off-street Orders are 
solely dealt with at a borough level by parking services.  

Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) as the Highways Authority are aware of our 
promotion of the Order and have raised no concerns, and as the land is owned by 
the Council. Therefore, any other council including HCC would not have the initial 
powers to promote the Order. 

21 
“No evidence is presented that this proposal will 
relieve or prevent traffic congestion. The 

 The purposes of promoting the Order would relieve or prevent traffic congestion. 

P
age 15



 

 

10 

 

opposite is more likely, as congestion is likely to 
occur as traffic is concentrated on a single 
entrance and exit from the car park. Additionally, 
as there is no indication that there will be an 
occupancy/free spaces system traffic congestion 
may well occur with traffic queuing to enter the 
car park at busy times. the internal layout of the 
car park will also cause congestion and delays 
to season ticket holders on the upper floors held 
up by people parking on the lower floors.” 

This relates to the car park rather than the cost of parking there. If the car park was 
not built and the town centre was to have 420 less parking spaces, there would be 
a high possibility of congestion on nearby roads trying to seek parking.  

The layout of the MSCP is designed to be free flowing with separate up and down 
ramps and there is no evidence to suggest there would be congestion looking for a 
space in the lower levels, as drivers would simply drive along the car park including  
to the next floor looking for the available space.   

22 
“resolved by deletion of Paragraphs 9-18 and 
Schedule 2 in its entirety”  

Deleting “Paragraphs” known in the Order as Articles 9-18 and Schedule 2 would 
remove the rules regarding charging for season tickets and time limits/charges 
beyond 3 hours. The objector’s wishes for these to be deleted is based on the 
objector not wanting to see any provision for long term parking by local workers or 
visitors/shoppers. No time limit or deterrence could lead to commuters parking in 
the town centre car parks instead of parking at the railway station.  

23 
“A paragraph added to the order that states that 
the initial arrangements for parking in the Multi-
Storey car park cannot be revised for 5 years 
from the opening” 

Such a caveat is not usually added into parking Orders, they do not as such have 
an expiry or revision date, the only exception is an on street experimental Order for 
up to 18 months. For Parking Services to correctly assess the impact of the 
restrictions and make any necessary adjustments due to issues arising from 
unintended consequences as highlighted at 7.2 would not be possible if such an 
Article was added into the Order.  

24 
“For the first 7 (years) I parked in Link Drive 
which was always packed. Since parking 
permits were put into place last year the car 
park is now virtually empty” 

Link Drive car park prior to 2020 did not have any time limits imposed. As resident 
permit schemes were introduced in Old Hatfield and French Horn Lane area, 
railway station commuters started a displacement process into Link Drive car park. 
The Parking Team received feedback including from Hatfield Traders Association 
highlighting all day parking by non-workers/shoppers. The permit scheme into the 
car park was a temporary extension to alleviate local workers who were struggling 
to park. The car park has been far under capacity, however that is due to 
Coronavirus impact where many local workers were either furloughed or working 
from home rather than due to permits. The number of combined permit spaces sit 

P
age 16



 

 

11 

 

at 140 and 191 permits are currently active.  

25 
“If you chose Dog Kennel Lane or Kennelwood 
you may arrive to find there are no places left” 

There will be a cap on the number of season tickets sold per car park. By limiting 
season tickets to one car park would enable better management of the car park, 
where a multi access season ticket would lead to more drivers moving around car 
parks looking for a space if one was suddenly in high demand by local workers.  

It is proposed that Kennelwood Lane car park would have a cap of 25 season 
tickets (approx 40% of car park capacity), and the MSCP 180 (42% of capacity).  

Dog Kennel Lane would be the only car park where number of season tickets sold 
would be allowed to go over capacity – 60 season ticket limit over 56 spaces. This 
is to consider the likelihood of any part time workers, staff on annual leave and 
nearby residents potentially not being at home during the main part of the working 
day. The three main car parks in Welwyn Garden City also operate on the basis of 
one car park per season ticket, and the Parking Team are not aware of any issues 
in the last 4 years where season ticket holders could not be accommodated in their 
relevant car park.  

If there were any exceptional planned circumstances, such as a car park being 
closed for works, season tickets would be temporarily accepted in an alternative 
car park and this would be communicated.  

26 
“My business is situated in Dog Kennel Lane off 
the car park. My customers will have no direct 
entrance into my shop and will have to park 
elsewhere. I cater for many elderly and disabled 
people”  

The business in question has a pedestrian access point via a passageway from 
Town Centre itself, and it is noted there is a sign in that location indicating the 
business. Dog Kennel Lane car park is proposed to retain its 4 designated disabled 
bays for the purpose of blue badge holders accessing retail premises next to Dog 
Kennel Lane. Kennelwood Lane and The Common car parks which will allow 
shoppers parking are less than a 3-5-minute walk to businesses that back onto 
Dog Kennel Lane car park. A loading bay is also in situ in Dog Kennel Lane car 
park adjacent to the business which will enable customers to stop their vehicle to 
load and unload items from the shop if required.  

 

P
age 17



 

 

12 

 

5 Legal Implication(s) 

5.1 Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) are created under the Road Traffic Regulation 
Act 1984. Consultations follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local 
Authorities' Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. 
No other legal implications are inherent in relation into the proposals in this 
report. 

5.2 The Council can amend proposals once advertised if they make the scheme less 
restrictive. This can be done without having to re-advertise the Traffic Regulation 
Order. 

5.3 Section 35C of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 permits the variation of 
charges in off-street council owned car parks, without the need for consultation. 
This will be applicable to future changes in fees and charges.  

6 Financial Implication(s) 

6.1 The cost of TRO works, signage, and relevant advertising of proposals 
recommended in this report will be funded through existing Parking Services 
revenue and capital budgets. 

6.2 The running cost for the first year of the MSCP is estimated to be £190k the 
income generated from the car park is estimated to be £178k and therefore there 
is a net subsidy by the council of £12k during the first year of operation. The 
parking tariff for future years will be considered as part of budget setting process 
going forward. 

7 Risk Management Implications 

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above-mentioned car parks could 
generate negative publicity. However, it is recognised that the introduction of the 
first three hours free will be attractive to many residents and visitors to Hatfield 
Town centre. This will also ensure that not all parking spaces are not taken up by 
the same vehicles all day, such as local workers and commuters, which limits 
free available spaces for shoppers. Local workers will however be able to 
purchase a season ticket in whichever car park is closest to their workplace, 
spreading the demand between the car parks 

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after any are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or 
parking displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are 
discovered during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and 
carry out the appropriate remedial action. Parking Services would also look at 
monitoring the restrictions for at least 6 months once Covid-19 regulations are 
relaxed to assess the full impact of parking.  

8 Security & Terrorism Implications 

8.1 There are no security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report. 

9 Human Resources 

9.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report. 

Page 18



 

 

13 

 

10 Communication and Engagement 

10.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation 
process set out in the Local Authority Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 (and amended by The Traffic Orders Procedure 
(Coronavirus) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020) which the Council 
needs to adhere to. This includes consulting directly with all affected parties and 
statutory consultees, such as the Police and Hertfordshire County Council.  

10.2 In addition, Public Notices are required to be erected within all roads affected and 
advertised in the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times. 

10.3 Ward and County Councillors, Hertfordshire Police and Hertfordshire County 
Council have been consulted and no objections have been received regarding 
these proposals. 

10.4 This process has been carried out and there are no known implications in relation 
to the proposals in this report. 

11 Health and Wellbeing 

11.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the 
proposals in this report 

12 Procurement Implications 

12.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

13 Climate Change Implication(s) 

13.1 The ground floor of the MSCP will contain 8 EV charging bays 

14  Link to Corporate Priorities 

14.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and 
Enhance the Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver 
Effective Parking Services 

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services; 

 Help build a Strong Local Economy; 

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money 

Page 19



 

 

14 

 

15 Equality and Diversity 

15.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out.  

15.2 The EqIA found that there is potential for a positive impact on Disability because 
more disabled bays will be created close to the town centre access point. In 
consideration of this, it is proposed that each car park will contain disabled bays 
on accessible exits to provide dedicated parking close to the town centre for blue 
badge holders. Within the MSCP all disabled bays are located on the ground 
floor negating the need to use the stairs or lift. With the 77% of publicly available 
space contained on one site, it gives better opportunity to park close to most of 
the retail and services within the town centre thereby facilitating better access to 
these services by disabled users.  

Name of author Matthew McCann 
Title Parking Services Team Leader 
Date 11th February 2021 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

 

Page 20



Appendix A

P
age 21



Appendix A

P
age 22



Appendix A

P
age 23



Appendix A

P
age 24



Appendix A

P
age 25



Appendix A

P
age 26



Appendix A

P
age 27



Appendix A

P
age 28



Appendix A

P
age 29



Appendix A

P
age 30



Appendix A

P
age 31



Appendix A

P
age 32



Appendix A

P
age 33



 

 
Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust 

Howard Court, 14 Tewin Road 
 Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1BW 

 
Wednesday, 3/02/2021  

 
Durk Reyner  
Head of Environment 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Council Offices, The Campus,  
Welwyn Garden City,  
Herts AL8 6AE 
 

NHS FORMAL OBJECTION RE: THE PROPOSAL OF THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN 
HATFIELD (VARIOUS CAR PARKS, HATFIELD) ORDER 2021 

 
 
The Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust (HCT) acknowledges that the positive city regeneration 
changes being made in the Hatfield Town Centre will have a positive impact on the local 
population. 
 
However HCT are submitting a formal objection to some of the proposed parking changes which 
would result in severely hampering the way that the health and wellbeing services are able to be 
delivered from our Queensway Health Centre in the Hatfield Town Centre. This could in turn 
affect the wellbeing of the residents of Hatfield. 
 
In particular the NHS would like to ensure the following: 

- That the costs of the parking permits e.g. within the new “The Common Multi Storey Car 
Park” either be free, or at the very least remain at the current price of £50 per year for the 
NHS Staff who operate at our Queensway Health Centre. HCT understand that the multi 
storey will replace the current £50 per year permit parking available at the Link Drive 
facility (across the road from the Queensway Health Centre). However, the proposed price 
increase to £200 per year will put the cost of parking out of the financial reach of the NHS 
and its staff required to operate in the town centre, thus impacting service delivery. 

- Assurance be given that the current demarcated permit parking bays in Kennelwood Lane 
car park (behind Queensway Health Centre) that is used by the NHS for the clinic will also 
be continued as per the current arrangement, for the same reasons as above. 

 
HCT hope that our existing positive and supportive relationship with the  Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council will assist us in finding a workable solution to the parking situation in the Hatfield 
Town Centre. 
 
 
 

Appendix A

Page 34



Appendix A

P
age 35



Appendix A

P
age 36



 
Registered Podiatrist 

,  
Welwyn Garden City,  Herts. AL7 2QA  

 
 

3rd February 2021 
  

 

Durk Reyner,  

Council Offices, 

 The Campus,  

Welwyn Garden City,  

Herts AL8 6AE 

 

Dear Mr Reyner, 

Re: NOTICE OF INTENT FOR PROPOSING – PARKING RESTRICTIONS  

I would like to submit a formal objection to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s 
proposals to increase the parking permit charges in Hatfield Town Centre.  

I work in the NHS at Queensway Health Centre and I cannot afford to pay either 
£200 per annum (a huge increase on the current £50) or a charge of £6.50 per day. I 
know my fellow health professional colleagues are in a similar situation and hold 
similar views. To also remove the reserved health centre spaces at Kennelwood 
Lane car park will further reduce the ability for health centre staff to deliver treatment 
to the residents of Hatfield. My colleagues and I are delivering essential medical 
services and it is preposterous that we are expected to pay to park in order to work. 

In recent years there has been an initiative from health and social care to deliver 
local services to local residents, particularly those who are elderly and disabled. I 
feel the Council is putting in obstructions to deliver these local services to the 
detriment of their residents. It may be the case that Hertfordshire Community NHS 
Trust will need to withdraw patient treatments from Queensway Health Centre due to 
your parking proposals as they are unable to fund staff expenses.   

I do hope my objection will be considered at the CPPP on 4th March 2021. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Appendix A

Page 37



Appendix A

P
age 38



Appendix A

P
age 39



Appendix A

P
age 40



Appendix A

P
age 41



Appendix A

P
age 42



Appendix A

P
age 43



Appendix A

P
age 44



1

Matthew McCann

From:
Sent: 05 February 2021 19:47
To: parking
Subject: Objection to proposed Hatfield Town Centre Parking Order

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sir 

 

I wish to register my objection to the proposed Hatfield Off Street parking places order, on the following grounds: 

 

1) Deception by omission in constructing the multi‐storey  car park without publicly identifying how costs of 
operation will be met. 

2) Material conflict of Interest in promoting the order 

3) Unproven grounds for proposing the Order 

4) Objection to the imposition of restrictions and charging for using the new car park. 

 

The basis for my objections in detail is: 

 

1) A multi‐storey car park space costs much more money to provide, operate and maintain than a surface car park 
space. This information is readily available and was in a form that could be used when the initial proposal was being 
discussed.  However the Council chose not to make this information publicly available during the planning process 
and other decision making stages and did not indicate that the operational cost of the car park would be covered by 
the imposition of parking charges, though it appears that this was under consideration at that time.  Whether a 
parking charge will be imposed is a material fact that should have been disclosed at the Public Consultation and as 
part of the planning application. To omit this information is a deception on Council tax payers and Councillors. 

2) The Council is also the landowner with a vested interest in seeking to profit from the sale of existing car parks for 
redevelopment. There is therefore a conflict of interest in relocating parking to a new car park and then charging for 
it's use. Car Park users will not benefit from the multi‐storey car park, it will be less attractive than the existing 
provision, take longer to use and as proposed, even short term parking will require users to spend time obtaining a 
'free' ticket. The car park is therefore a dis‐benefit to existing users and to additionally charge them for using the 
facility that is less attractive to use is wrong in all respects. 

As the Council, future developers and residents of future dwellings are the only beneficiaries of the multi‐story car 
park, they should bear the cost of operating and maintaining the multi‐storey car park.  This is entirely consistent 
with the concept that beneficiaries pay for benefits gained. 

Appendix A

Page 45



2

Payment of ongoing maintenance and operating costs should be an enforceable condition of all land sales resulting 
from the consolidation of car parking. 

3) Three reasons are given for the promotion of the order: 

The first two reason are not material to the Draft Traffic Regulation Order.   Regulating and charging for car park 
spaces is likely to have the opposite effect, as motorists seek to find other parking places, often in less suitable 
locations. 

No evidence is presented that this proposal will relieve or prevent traffic congestion. The opposite is more likely, as 
congestion is likely to occur as traffic is concentrated on a single entrance and exit from the car park.  Additionally as 
there is  no indication that there will be an occupancy/free spaces system traffic congestion may well occur with 
traffic queuing to enter the car park at busy times. the internal layout of the car park will also cause congestion and 
delays to season ticket holders on the upper floors held up by people parking on the lower floors.  

The third reason is a legal power, not a reason to impose a traffic regulation order.  It is also not a reason to impose 
fees for using the facility. 

I therefore contend that the Council has not provided a valid reason for promoting the order and therefore no legal 
basis for confirming the order or any variation thereof. 

4) The Council did not indicate that fees would be levied on car park use at the original decision point, though it was 
clear or should have been clear that there would be substantial additional operational costs. If there was no 
consideration of additional costs, Officers and Councillors were negligent in their duty. If the additional cost were 
known, but not disclosed, then this amounts to deception of the public. 

Proposed Resolution 

My objection would be resolved by: 

Deletion of paragraphs 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18 

and Schedule 2 in it's entirety 

I also wish to see a paragraph added to the order that states that the initial arrangements for parking in the Multi‐
Storey car park cannot be revised for five (5) years from the opening of the multi‐storey car park. 

If my objections are not upheld, I will still retain my objection unless the draft order provides  for any charges to be 
fixed for a period of 5 year from opening. 

 

Yours Faithfully 

 

Appendix A

Page 46



Appendix A

P
age 47



Appendix A

P
age 48



 
 

 

Hertfordshire Family Centre Service 
Creswick Family Centre, Sir John Newsom Way 

Welwyn Garden City, AL7 4FL 
  

Friday 05/02/2021  
  
Durk Reyner  
Head of Environment 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Council Offices, The Campus,  
Welwyn Garden City,  
Herts AL8 6AE 

 
 

FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE (FSS) FORMAL OBJECTION RE: THE PROPOSAL OF THE BOROUGH 
OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS CAR PARKS, HATFIELD) ORDER 2021 

 
The Hertfordshire Family Centre Service acknowledges that the positive city regeneration changes 
being made in the Hatfield Town Centre will have a positive impact on the local community. 
 
However as we are collocated with Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust (HCT) we are submitting a 
formal objection to some of the proposed parking changes which would result in severely hampering 
services ability to maintain effective partnership working with HCT and more importantly the ability to 
support the most vulnerable families within the Hatfield community. This in turn could have a negative 
impact on the wellbeing of the residents of Hatfield. 
 
In particular the FSS would like to ensure the following: 

- That the costs of the parking permits e.g. within the new “The Common Multi Storey Car Park” 
either be free, or at the very least remain at the current price of £50 per year for the FSS Staff 
who operate at our Queensway Health Centre. FSS understand that the multi storey will replace 
the current £50 per year permit parking available at the Link Drive facility (across the road from 
the Queensway Health Centre). However, the proposed price increase to £200 per year will put 
the cost of parking out of the financial reach of the FSS and its staff required to operate in the 
town centre, thus impacting service delivery. 

  
We hope that our existing positive and supportive relationship with the Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council will assist us in finding a workable solution to the parking situation in the Hatfield Town Centre. 
 

Appendix A

Page 49



From: )
To: Matthew McCann; Durk Reyner
Subject: OBJECTION TO PROPOSED SEASON TICKET CHARGE FOR HATFIELD COMMON MULTISTOREY CAR PARK
Date: 16 February 2021 10:22:27

I am submitting this email in objection to the proposed season ticket charges for the Hatfield Common multi-storey car park as set out in the letter
from Welwyn Hatfield council dated 11th January 2021 to Lister House Surgery where I work as Practice Nurse. 

I am aware that your letter stated that objections must be submitted by email to parking@welhat.gov.uk by Friday 5th February however I was
unable to meet this deadline as we have been rather busy these past few weeks in organising and implementing the coronavirus vaccination roll out
programme. I am therefore sending my email directly to you, and copied to Mr Reyner, in the expectation that you will include my objection for
consideration at your meeting on the 4th March 2021. 

Prior to the construction of the multi-storey car park we were able to park free of charge in the long stay places in The Common car park or at Link
Drive. Then, during the construction of the new car park, it was necessary for us all to park over at Link Drive for which we were charged £50 00 per
annum for a season ticket. Now, once the multi-storey car park is opened, you are proposing to charge us £200.00 per year for a season ticket, a
sum which I, and I am sure many others, consider to be exorbitant and unfair. 

I understand that the council have a budget to work to and need to find the cost of the construction of the multi-storey car park from that budget.
However, that is not the same as saying that those least able to afford those costs should be asked to pay in this way. 

Many of the people who will need to use the car park will be low paid shop workers and people such as me working in the health care sector, who as
you will be well aware, are far from well paid. Throughout the past 12 months central government have been singing the praises of health care
workers whilst acknowledging that we are underpaid for the work that we do. However, this acknowledgement has not translated to any increase in
our wages and now to add insult to injury Welwyn Hatfield Council expect us to find £200 00 a year from somewhere to help you balance your
budget. This proposed charge comes at a time when many people are struggling to make ends meet and I consider it to be nothing short of
shameful. 

In addition to this written objection, I propose to contact Democratic Services to advise them that I would like to ask a question at your meeting. 

 

 

 

 

********************************************************************************************************************

This message may contain confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient please inform the
sender that you have received the message in error before deleting it.
Please do not disclose, copy or distribute information in this e-mail or take any action in relation to its
contents. To do so is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. Thank you for your co-operation.

NHSmail is the secure email and directory service available for all NHS staff in England and Scotland. NHSmail is
approved for exchanging patient data and other sensitive information with NHSmail and other accredited email
services.

For more information and to find out how you can switch, https://portal.nhs.net/help/joiningnhsmail

Appendix A

Page 50



NOTICE OF INTENT FOR PROPOSING  
 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS CAR PARKS, HATFIELD) 
(OFF-STREET PARKING PLACES) ORDER 2021 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to arrangement made with 
Hertfordshire County Council) proposes to make the above Order under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Further 
details are outlined in the schedules to this notice. 

Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Order, the plans and the statement of reasons for 
proposing which may be inspected on our website at www.welhat.gov.uk/HatfieldCP, or if open – depending on 
current Covid-19 restrictions - during reception opening hours at Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, The 
Campus, Welwyn Garden City from Wednesday 13th January 2021. A copy of the documents can also be 
sent via post during this period upon request. 

General enquiries relating to the Order should be referred to Matthew McCann, Parking Services Team Leader, 
Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE. Tel: 01707 357000. Email: parking@welhat.gov.uk  

Objections to the proposals should be made in writing via post to Durk Reyner, Council Offices, The Campus, 
Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE OR by email at parking@welhat.gov.uk by Friday 5th  February 2021, 
stating the grounds on which they are made.  

SCHEDULE 1: Off Street Plans – the location and extent of designated parking places and parking bays 
as set out in the Order and accompanying plans for use as: 

Disabled Person’s parking, Motorcycle Parking, electric vehicle charging, paid parking bays for other motor 
vehicles.  

SCHEDULE 2: Parking Charges – for pay and display car parks as set out in the Order and 
accompanying plans 

Daily Parking Operational Days 
and Hours 

Charging Days 
and Hours 

Duration Charges* 

Dog Kennel Lane 
Car Park 

All days and all 
hours 

Monday - Saturday 
7am - 6pm 

3 month season ticket – town 
centre worker / resident 

£50.00 

1 year season ticket – town 
centre worker / resident 

£200.00 

Kennelwood Lane 
Car Park 

All days and all 
hours 

Monday - Saturday 
7am - 6pm 

0 - 3 hours Free – when 
displaying a 
ticket 

3 hours – 4 hours £3.50 
All Day – above 4 hours £6.50 
3 month season ticket – town 
centre worker / resident 

£50.00 

1 year season ticket – town 
centre worker / resident 

£200.00 

The Common 
Multi Storey Car 
Park 

All days and all 
hours 

Monday - Saturday 
7am - 6pm 

0 - 3 hours Free – when 
displaying a 
ticket 

3 hours – 4 hours £3.50 
All Day – above 4 hours £6.50 
3 month season ticket – town 
centre worker / resident 

£50.00 

1 year season ticket – town 
centre worker / resident 

£200.00 

Appendix B

Page 51

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/HatfieldCP
mailto:parking@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:parking@welhat.gov.uk


2 

        
 

 
SCHEDULE 3: Administration charges as set out in the Order and the accompanying plans 
 
Administration Type Charges 
Duplicate/replacement Season Ticket Permit £15 
Change of vehicle details on Season Ticket No Charge 

 
SCHEDULE 4: Refunds as set out in the Order and the accompanying plans 
 
Permit Type Refund 
Refund Season Ticket £15 

 
 
*The Charges shown in these schedules maybe amended by the Council giving notice in accordance with 
section 35C of the Act of 1984. 
 
Durk Reyner  
Head of Environment 
Council Offices, The Campus,  
Welwyn Garden City,  
Herts AL8 6AE 
 
13th January 2021 
 
Consulting on this scheme is a statutory duty of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. Any personal data you provide in 
responding to this Notice will be treated as confidential but will be shared with WHBC Officers; Borough Councillors 
and contracted third parties who are involved in the statutory process. We will not share identifiable data with third 
parties outside of the statutory process. Guidance on your rights in respect of personal data are published in the 
Privacy Policy on our website, www.welhat.gov.uk  

 

Appendix B

Page 52

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/


WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR PROPOSING 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS CAR PARKS, HATFIELD)  
(OFF-STREET PARKING PLACES) ORDER 2021 

 
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is proposing to revoke parts of the existing off-street parking 
order and create a new off-street parking order for the following Hatfield car parks; 
 

- Kennelwood Lane 
- Dog Kennel Lane 
- The Common 
 

The new order will allow Parking Services to introduce restrictions in the newly built car park in 
The Common, as well as introduce new paid for parking in Dog Kennel Lane and Kennelwood 
Lane car parks. 
 
In Dog Kennel Lane, to introduce paid for parking for season ticket holders. In Kennelwood 
Lane to introduce pay and display option to all parking bays. In The Common, pay and display 
parking spaces alongside paid for Disabled Bays, electric charging spaces and motorcycle 
parking.  
 
Specific parking locations will be mapped out within the Order for parking bays which are 
designated for Blue Badge holders, motorcycles, pay and display.   

 
Having considered the duty imposed by Section 122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, it 
appears to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council that it is necessary and expedient to make the 
Order for the following reasons: 
 

• To facilitate the passage on the road or any other road of any class of traffic 
including pedestrians 

• To relieve or prevent congestion of traffic 
• To provide suitable parking facilities 

 
All the above restrictions have been subject to consultation with car park users, local 
businesses, the Police, Hertfordshire County Council and Borough and County Councillors 
representing the area. 
 
 
Durk Reyner 
Head of Environment 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts. AL8 6AE 
 
13th January 2021 

Appendix B

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Durk Reyner 
Head of Environment 

Reply To: address as below        
Date: 11 February 2021 

Direct Tel: 01707 357000 
Email: contact-WHC@welhat.gov.uk 

Dear Resident/Business Owner, 

NOTICE OF INTENT FOR PROPOSING – PARKING RESTRICTIONS 

As you know, a multi-storey car park has been constructed in The Common for Hatfield Town Centre. 
Built to consolidate surface level car parking, freeing up sites elsewhere for new homes, shops and 
leisure, the multi-storey is part-funded through a £4.8m Local Growth Fund contribution from the 
Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).The multi-storey will provide approximately 420 new 
spaces on site. Link Drive car park, as well as the temporary car parks of Fourways and Wellfield Road 
will close in due course. https://one.welhat.gov.uk/Hatfield-parking-FAQS 

As part of the process, new parking restrictions are being proposed in The Common multi-storey, 
Kennelwood Lane and Dog Kennel Lane car parks. It follows a parking survey carried out with local 
businesses which revealed 70% of customers need to park for under three hours, in line with the town's 
current time limit restrictions. However, local businesses also wanted greater flexibility to enable people to 
stay for longer periods than most restricted spaces currently allow. The new charges would reflect Hatfield 
remaining the only town in Hertfordshire to offer free parking for up to 3 hours. 

The parking restriction proposals will be advertised as a public notice on Wednesday 13th January in Welwyn 
Hatfield Times, on lampposts near the car parks and on our website. On the following page is an outline of 
our proposals. Any further general enquiries relating to the Order should be referred to Matthew McCann, 
Parking Services Team Leader, 01707 357000 or parking@welhat.gov.uk  

Objections to the proposed restrictions should be made in writing via post to Durk Reyner, Council 
Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE OR by email at parking@welhat.gov.uk by 
Friday 5th  February 2021, stating the grounds on which they are made.  

Any objections will be considered and put forward to the Council’s Cabinet Planning Parking Panel in a 
report alongside Parking Services response to the points. The CPPP will take place on 4th March 2021, 
and will be shown online at: www.welhat.gov.uk/committees/watch 

Any approved parking restrictions would likely take effect in May 2021. 

The council’s fees and charges for 2021-22 are being set as part of the wider budget setting process, 
which ensures a balanced budget to fund and maintain services provided by the council. The below are 
the provisional fees and charges which will be considered at the Full Council meeting on 1 February 2021. 

Hatfield Car park season ticket for residents and local workers - £50 per quarter or £200 per year. 

Pay and Display in The Common and Kennelwood Lane car parks: 3 hours free parking, 3-4 hours £3.50, 
All day (above 4 hours) £6.50. 

Appendix C

Page 55

https://one.welhat.gov.uk/Hatfield-parking-FAQS
https://one.welhat.gov.uk/Hatfield-parking-FAQS
mailto:parking@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:parking@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:parking@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:parking@welhat.gov.uk
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/committees/watch
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/committees/watch


 
 

Outline of proposals: 
 
The Common Multi Storey – charges (for over three hours) apply Monday to Saturday 7am to 6pm:  
8 Electric vehicle charging points – limited to 4 hours charging stay limit 7am to 6pm 
18 Disabled Bays – disabled badge must be displayed at all times including out of charging hours 
Dedicated Motorcycle parking area for up to 7 motorcycles 
387 Pay and display parking spaces (three hours free) 
 
Kennelwood Lane – charges (for over three hours) apply Monday to Saturday 7am to 6pm:  
8 Disabled Bays as per current locations – disabled badge must be displayed at all times including out of 
charging hours 
All 3 hour parking bays will change to pay and display spaces. The existing B05 permit bays bordering the 
health centre would also change to pay and display conditions ensuring better use of space for all. Total 
of 64 pay and display spaces (three hours free). 
 
All parking bays, including disabled and electric bays in the above car parks, would be subject to the pay 
and display conditions.For 3 hours free parking, a ticket would be acquired from the ticket machine and 
displayed on the dashboard, the machines will be set to allow one free ticket per vehicle per day. Anyone 
who wishes to park for longer would pay the relevant charge to enable longer stay parking. For paid 
parking over 3 hours, paybyphone can also be used to make payment.  
 
Dog Kennel Lane – season ticket restrictions apply Monday to Saturday 7am to 6pm 
4 Disabled Bays would stay in situ – disabled badge must be displayed at all times. 
Existing permit bays and the 3 hour bays would all transfer into season ticket holders only bays to enable 
better access for businesses located on this side of the town to get parking. Total of 56 season ticket 
spaces.  
 
Season Tickets 
Once new restrictions are ready to start, a season ticket can be purchased by local workers and town 
centre residents online upon relevant proof being submitted (headed letter/council tax bill AND proof of 
vehicle), for one car park of the applicant’s choice: The Common, Dog Kennel or Kennelwood Lane. A 
season ticket would be valid for ONE vehicle registration only, changes to vehicle details can be made 
throughout the year free of charge upon correct proof being submitted.  
Our online parking permit system NSL Apply would be available for the purchase of season tickets as per 
the current B04 business permits.  
The choice of one car park only would also enable us to manage demand better ensuring less chance of 
a waiting list. Initially, we would anticipate 60 being available for Dog Kennel, 25 for Kennelwood and 180 
for The Common. We would of course monitor demand and availability if there was higher demand in one 
location, whilst ensuring there is availability for shoppers/visitors in Kennelwood/The Common. 
 
Any existing B04 business permits will eventually cease to exist, any remaining time on a permit when the 
new restrictions come into force will be transferred to a season ticket. Parking Services will contact the 
permit holders nearer to the start of the new restrictions to find out which car park you require it for and 
advise on any further details. “All Zones” health care permits would also no longer be accepted in any car 
parks; they are issued for the purpose of health care workers to carry out home care/visits to the 
borough’s residents in on street permit schemes not for the purpose of workplace parking.   
 
The car park restrictions proposals with the relevant layout plans can be viewed on the council’s website 
from Wednesday 13th January 2021 at: https://www.welhat.gov.uk/HatfieldCP A paper copy of the plans 
can also be requested by calling 01707 357000.  
 
 
Sent on behalf of  
Parking Services  
  

Appendix C

Page 56

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/HatfieldCP
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/HatfieldCP


Appendix D

Page 57



Appendix D

Page 58



Appendix D

Page 59



Appendix D

Page 60



Appendix D

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Colin Haigh 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
All wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 4 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE) 
 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK – DESIGN CODE CONSULTATION 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The Government is consulting on changes to the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) as well as on proposals for a National Model Design Code and 
a Guidance Note for Design Codes. 

1.2 The deadline for responding is 27 March 2021. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 That Members comment on proposed changes to the NPPF regarding design 
codes and Article 4 Directions. 

2.2 That the Head of Planning be authorised to respond to the consultation, in 
agreement with the Corporate Director and Executive Member for Planning. 

3 Explanation 

Design Codes 

3.1 The Building Better, Building Beautiful Commission was established in 2019 to be 
responsible for developing practical measures to help ensure new housing meets 
the needs and expectation of communities, making them more likely to be 
welcomed rather than resisted. 

3.2 The recommendations of the Commission were incorporated into Planning White 
Paper, which placed an emphasis on the importance of design, beautiful places, 
good place-making and community engagement as part of the planning process. 

3.3 The Government is now consulting on proposed changes to the NPPF as well as 
other design code guidance to implement the original recommendations. 

3.4 In summary, the proposed changes to the NPPF include greater reference to 
issues such as sustainable patterns of development, beautiful places, design 
quality, masterplans, design codes, tree-lined streets, climate change, pedestrian 
and cycle routes, secure cycle parking and area-based character assessments. 

3.5 It is not considered that any of these changes present any fundamental challenges 
to the Council in terms of the current Local Plan process (as it is still being 
examined under the 2012 NPPF) and can easily be incorporated into the 
determination of planning applications. 

3.6 The substantive proposed changes are to the following paragraphs: 

127: To provide maximum clarity about design expectations at an early stage, 
all local planning authorities should prepare design guides or codes consistent 
with the principles set out in the National Design Guide and National Model 
Design Code and which reflect local character and design preferences. These 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/957295/Draft_NPPF_for_consultation.pdf


provide a local framework for creating beautiful and distinctive places with a 
consistent and high quality standard of design. Their level of detail and degree 
of prescription should be tailored to the circumstances and scale of change in 
each place, and should allow a suitable degree of variety where this would be 
justified. 

128: Design guides and codes can be prepared at an area-wide or site-specific 
scale, and to carry weight in decision-making should be produced either as part 
of a plan or as supplementary planning documents (although applicants may 
also elect to prepare codes for sites which they propose to develop). All guides 
and codes should be based on effective community engagement and reflect 
local aspirations for the development of their area, taking into account the 
guidance contained in the National Design Guide and the National Model 
Design Code. These national documents should also be used to guide 
decisions on applications in the absence of locally-produced guides or codes. 

130: Trees make an important contribution to the character and quality of urban 
environments, and can also help mitigate and adapt to climate change. 
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that new streets are tree-lined, 
that opportunities are taken to incorporate trees elsewhere in developments 
(such as community orchards), that appropriate measures are in place to 
secure the long term maintenance of newly-planted trees, and that existing 
trees are retained wherever possible. Applicants and local planning authorities 
should work with local highways officers and tree officers to ensure that the 
right trees are planted in the right places, and solutions are found that are 
compatible with highways standards and the needs of different users. 

133: Development that is not well designed should be refused, especially 
where it fails to reflect local design policies and government guidance on 
design, taking into account any local design guidance and supplementary 
planning documents which use visual tools such as design guides and codes. 
Conversely, significant weight should be given to: a) development which 
reflects local design policies and government guidance on design, taking into 
account any local design guidance and supplementary planning documents 
which use visual tools such as design guides and codes; and/or b) outstanding 
or innovative designs which promote high levels of sustainability, or help raise 
the standard of design more generally in an area, so long as they fit in with the 
overall form and layout of their surroundings. 

3.7 Leading on from this, the Government has also publishing a draft National Model 
Design Code and a draft Guidance Notes for Design Codes that provides a 
checklist of design principles to consider for new developments, such as street 
character, building type, façade and requirements that address wellbeing and 
environmental impact, which councils can use as a foundation for their own local 
design codes. It states that “a design code is a simple, concise, illustrated design 
requirements that are visual and numerical wherever possible to provide specific, 
detailed parameters for the physical development of a site or area.”  

3.8 The guidance note contains seven steps: (1) Analysis (a) scoping, (b) baseline; (2) 
Vision (a) design vision, (b) coding plan, (c) masterplanning; (3) Code (a) area type 
guidance, (b) design code wide guidance. The minimum issues for inclusion are: 
movement, access, street hierarchy, landscape and open space, land use and mix, 
density, heights, number of homes, identity and character of buildings and public 
spaces, and there is scope for many more as appropriate. 

3.9 The Government will also create an Office for Place to support local communities 
to turn their designs into the standard for new buildings in their area. 

Page 64

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/957205/National_Model_Design_Code.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/957205/National_Model_Design_Code.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/957207/Guidance_notes_for_Design_Codes.pdf


3.10 It is anticipated that most Members and many others will welcome the proposed 
changes – to prepare design codes, base them on community engagement and 
local aspirations and refuse development that is not well designed. 

3.11 The potential challenge that arises for the Council is in the preparation of design 
codes, which will require decision-making about whether to prepare a single code 
for the whole borough, to prepare distinct codes for different towns, villages or 
neighbourhoods and the level of community engagement to incorporate into this 
process. 

3.12 The preparation of a design code as a supplementary planning document requires 
a draft version to be prepared by officers, agreed by CPPP and Cabinet, public 
consultation, analysis of responses, updates to the code and a final version to be 
agreed by CPPP and Cabinet. 

3.13 The work will necessitate: design skills, the ability to prepare good-looking and 
understandable design documents and public engagement, including virtual or 
physical meetings with interested parties such as ward councillors, town/parish 
councils, resident groups, landowners, developers and others. 

Article 4 Directions 

3.14 The proposed changes to the NPPF also contain new wording on the preparation 
of Article 4 Directions – so that where they relate to changes of use to residential 
they be limited to situations where this is essential to avoid wholly unacceptable 
adverse impacts and that they apply to the smallest geographical area possible.  

3.15 We do not consider this harms CPPP’s recent decision to consult on two new 
Article 4 Directions to restrict the redevelopment of commercial buildings to 
residential use in strategic employment areas in order to protect office space and 
job opportunities and to restrict the upward expansion of blocks of flats in Hatfield 
in order to protect the heritage of Grade I Hatfield House and Park and other 
assets. 

4 Legal Implications 

4.1 The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies and must be taken into 
account by councils when preparing their development plans and is a material 
consideration in planning decisions. 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 There are financial implications associated with the preparation of design codes, 
either by officers as part of their general duties or using consultants. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There are no risk management implications associated with this report, although it 
should be anticipated that the Council may start being approached by town/parish 
councils, resident groups and perhaps developers and landowners who are keen 
to prepare a design code for their area/site. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implications 

7.1 There are no security or terrorism implications associated with this report. Design 
codes may need to consider security and terrorism implications where appropriate. 

  

Page 65



8 Procurement Implications 

8.1 There may be procurement implications associated with this report, if the Council 
is minded to use consultants to help prepare design codes. 

9 Climate Change Implications 

9.1 The Council has declared a climate change emergency and set ambitious 
objectives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. It is considered that the 
recommendations of this report could have positive implications by incorporating 
climate change aspirations into design codes. 

10 Human Resources Implications 

10.1 There may be human resources implications associated with the preparation of 
design codes, if the Council is minded to use officers to prepare design codes. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications 

11.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications associated with this report. Design 
codes will need to consider health and wellbeing implications where appropriate.  

12 Communications and Engagement Implications 

12.1 The Council will need to consult on design codes as part of their preparation. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 and 
particularly Our Environment and Our Housing. 

14 Equalities and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. EqIAs may need to be prepared alongside design codes in future. 

 
Name of author Colin Haigh 
Title Head of Planning 
Date February 2021 

Page 66



Part I 
Main author: Colin Haigh 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
All wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 4 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
HERTFORDSHIRE WASTE LOCAL PLAN – DRAFT CONSULTATION 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Hertfordshire County Council is consulting on its Waste Local Plan.  The deadline 
for responding is 19 March 2021.  The timetable then assumes proposed 
submission consultation in Summer 2022, submission in Summer 2023 and 
adoption by Spring 2024.  

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That Members offer comments and grant delegated authority to the Head of 
Planning to prepare and submit a response, subject to final agreement by the 
Executive Member for Planning. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Council’s previous response to the initial consultation in March 2018: 

 supported the aspiration of the vision AND the concept of self-sufficiency 

 encouraged reference to the need to protect the green belt and human 
health 

 recommended that the plan should use growth targets in Local Plans 
rather than Objective Assessment of Housing Need (OAN) evidence 

 in respect of Local Authority Collected Waste, it queried why the level is 
expected to increase by 2031 even though it has remained relatively 
historically stable and requested that the strategy sets out a growth profile 
based on household/population growth and waste per household/capita 

 in respect of Commercial and Industrial Waste it recommended that waste 
integrator data and EEFM projections should be used with caution to avoid 
over-estimation 

 anticipated that Construction, Demolition and Excavation Waste will 
increase due to significant levels of housing growth 

 supported the site-by-site approach to identify new waste management 
capacity and the allocation of sites in favour of an areas of search 
approach, as this has previously been unsuccessful 

 supported the option to safeguard waste sites, the principle of identifying 
waste consultation areas and the principle of identifying employment 
areas that are suitable for waste management facilities, subject to a more 
refined criteria-based approach 

 recommended strategic and site-specific policies for different waste 
streams, to help provide certainty and to encourage the right facilities in 
the most appropriate locations 

Page 67

Agenda Item 9

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/waste-and-recycling/draft-waste-local-plan-2021.aspx


 requested a further round of consultation following the call-for-sites 
process 

3.2 The plan anticipates that the waste projected to arise in the county will increase 
from 3.5 million tonnes at present to 4.4 million tonnes by 2033 and that the 
waste gap will increase from 755,760 tonnes to nearly 3 million tonnes.  Self-
sufficiency requires sufficient sites to be identified to close this gap. 

3.3 The Council supports the plan’s vision to promote the waste hierarchy, achieve 
net self-sufficiency by 2036, resolution of the current capacity gap, efforts to 
achieve sustainable development and efforts to embrace modern technologies 
that reduce carbon emissions. 

3.4 The Council supports the ten strategic objectives to: (1) apply the waste 
hierarchy, (2) promote modern and efficient facilities, (3) promote well-suited 
waste facilities, (4) increase recycling, (5) waste facilities close to origin, (6) low 
emission modes of transport, (7) cooperation with partners, (8) waste as 
economic activity, (9) self-sufficiency and (10) tackle climate change. 

3.5 The plan considers that land off Birchall Lane at Cole Green is a strategic site for 
the management of construction, demolition and excavation waste.  Our two 
councils currently have a Memorandum of Understanding in place for the 
production of a SPD masterplan for the Birchall Garden Suburb site which would 
include this strategic waste site. 

3.6 The plan also identifies the household waste recycling centre at Birchall off the 
A414 as a waste site. 

3.7 The plan identifies Anticipated Growth Areas around larger settlements in the 
county, including Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield.  Preferred sites include: sites 
with planning permission for waste development, strategic sites, industrial sites 
and employment land, so long as the proposed use is compatible with 
neighbouring uses. 

3.8 The plan seeks to safeguard existing waste management facilities, so they are 
not lost to other types of development. 

3.9 The plan identifies Waste Consultation Areas, which covers the land within 250m 
of strategic sites and household waste recycling centres.  It requires WHBC to 
consult HCC on any non-waste development proposals (subject to certain 
exemptions) to consider whether they would have unacceptable impacts on 
waste management facilities.  This is known as the ‘agent of change’ principle.  
This issue is being considered as part of the site allocation and masterplanning 
process for Birchall Garden Suburb.  The list of safeguarded sites will be updated 
via the Annual Monitoring Report process.  It is therefore presumed that Tewin 
Road site will be added to this list in due course. 

3.10 The plan does not include any waste site allocations.  This is because it accepts 
that previous efforts to deliver identified sites have been unsuccessful, largely 
due to planning challenges and local opposition. 

3.11 The plan requires waste development proposals to demonstrate that they will 
incorporate multi-functional mitigation measures to tackle climate change, 
including location, setting, orientation, renewable energy, emissions, efficiency of 
plant and machinery, water efficiency, flood risk and ecosystem. 

3.12 The plan requires waste management facilities in the green belt to demonstrate 
very special circumstances sufficient to outweigh the harm. 

Page 68



3.13 The plan requires waste management facilities to ensure that their cumulative 
effects would not result in unacceptable adverse effects on the environment, 
health or amenity. 

3.14 The plan encourages the beneficial use of residual inert material from the 
construction, demolition and excavation sector. 

3.15 The plan expects waste development proposals to be located close to the 
primary route network and use sustainable transport as a priority. 

3.16 The plan expects operational transport associated with waste sites to be 
acceptable in terms of highway safety, operation of the highway network, the 
environment, human health and amenity. 

3.17 The plan expects waste development proposals to clearly demonstrate that 
potential health impacts have been assessed, mitigation measures put in place 
and efforts to enhance the environment, amenity and human health. 

3.18 The plan also expects waste development proposals to consider and enhance 
biodiversity, habitats, landscape, green infrastructure, water management and 
historic environment, sustainability, resource efficiency and rights of way. 

3.19 The plan supports the excavation and re-restoration of historic landfill sites. 

3.20 It is therefore recommended that the Council submit a generally supportive 
response to this consultation document.  The plan includes greater reference to 
the need to protect the green belt.  The plan includes greater reference to the 
need to protect human health and general amenity.  The plan includes greater 
reference to climate change.  The plan no longer refers to OAN figures.  The plan 
seeks to resolve the waste management gap by applying the waste hierarchy, 
protecting existing sites and favouring new sites in suitable urban locations. 

4 Legal Implications 

4.1 It is presumed that the Waste Local Plan is being prepared in accordance with 
national legislation and the Council is responding to ensure that its comments are 
taken into account and so that it can appear at public examination if necessary. 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report, other than the cost 
of planning officers to continue to read and respond to the Waste Local Plan at 
future stages. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There are no risk management implications associated with this report. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implications 

7.1 There are no security or terrorism implications associated with this report. 

8 Procurement Implications 

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated with this report. 

9 Climate Change Implications 

9.1 Both this Council and Herts County Council have declared a climate change 
emergency and set ambitious objectives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.  
The Waste Local Plan makes reference to tackling climate change. 

Page 69



10 Human Resources Implications 

10.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications 

11.1 The Waste Local Plan includes reference to protecting human health when 
considering waste management issues. 

12 Communications and Engagement Implications 

12.1 It is assumed that Herts County Council have consulted on the Waste Local Plan 
in accordance with national legislation. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 and 
particularly Priority 2 Our Environment to reduce waste and improve recycling. 

14 Equalities and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies.  It is the responsibility of Herts County Council to ensure their policies 
are compliant with the Equalities Act. 

 
Name of author Colin Haigh 
Title Head of Planning 
Date February 2021 
 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 

Herts Waste Local Plan 
Herts Draft Waste Local Plan Consultation Document - Jan 2020 (hertfordshire.gov.uk) 
 

CPPP Report, 12 April 2018, Draft Waste Local Plan Initial Consultation 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council - Agenda for Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel on 
Thursday 12th April 2018, 7.30 pm (welhat.gov.uk) 
 
Appendices: 
 

WHBC response to Draft Waste Local Plan Initial Consultation, dated 16 April 2018 

Page 70

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/media-library/documents/waste/waste-local-plan-consultation/hertfordshire-draft-waste-local-plan-january-2021.pdf
http://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=652&Ver=4
http://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=652&Ver=4


 

  

 
 
 
 

Colin Haigh 
Head of Planning 

 
Reply To: M.Azram@welhat.gov.uk   

Our Ref:dtc/wlp 
Date:16 April 2018 

Direct Tel: 01707 357511 
 

Mrs Julie Greaves  
Minerals and Waste Policy Team  
Spatial Planning and Economy  
CHN 216 
Hertfordshire County Council  
County Hall  
Pegs Lane  
Hertford  
SG13 8DN  
 
Dear Mrs Greaves  
 
Hertfordshire Waste Local Plan Initial Consultation Document February 2018  

 
Thank you for your letter in regards to the above consultation. We are grateful to you for agreeing 
to accept our response shortly after your consultation close date of 30th March 2018, due to the 
timing of the meeting of its Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel on 12th April 2018.  The content of 
this letter has been agreed by the Executive Member following consideration of the consultation by 
Cabinet Parking and Planning Panel. 
 
 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (WHBC) would like to make a number of comments, in relation 
to the Waste Local Plan Initial Consultation Document 2018 (WLP). These are set out below:  
 
Draft Vision (Issue 2)  
 
Welwyn Hatfield Council considers it appropriate for the WLP Draft Vision to include specific 
reference to the importance of protecting both the openness and permanence of the Green Belt 
and human health. This would help ensure these are key considerations during both the plan 
making and decision making process, in line with the NPPF (Para 14, 79) and NPPW (Para 6).  
 
Whilst in general we support the aspirations of the vision we consider that at next stage the Draft 
Vision could be enhanced through being more locally distinctive. This should focus on the key 
issues of what will happen, where, when and how during the life of the WLP. The benefits are: it 
will ensure a correlation between the challenges it is seeking to address; as well as make it easier 
to formulate objectives and policies. With regards to self- sufficiency we consider that this should 
incorporate the concept of offsetting and that there should be specific reference to this in the 
vision.  
 
This would ensure that strategic cross boundary matters are addressed in the vision and that 
account is taken of where modern facilities exist and likely investment decisions. 
     
Draft Objectives (Issue 3 & 4)  
 

Page 71



WHBC supports the proposed objectives, which are considered to be generally in line with the 
Draft Vision but we suggest they should include reference to the need to protect the Green Belt    
 
 
 
Format of the Local Plan (Issue 5)  
 
WHBC supports the production of a single WLP, as this will generally comply with the NPPF 
(Para153). This will help ensure a comprehensive waste planning framework is adopted, without 
any unnecessary delay. It will also encourage the sustainable management of waste and enable 
new development to be managed more effectively. 
 
Timeframes for the Waste Local Plan (Issue 6) 
 
WHBC supports a 15 year time frame for the WLP, as this would generally be consistent with the 
timeframes of the Hertfordshire District Local Plans. Further, the difficulties associated with 
forecasting waste will be compounded over a longer period. However regard should be had to the 
longer term in setting the strategy.  
 
Local Authority Collected Waste (LACW, Issues 7-8) 
 
We recommend that the LACW Spatial Strategy (2016) should be updated to reflect the most up-
to date proposals for housing growth included in the Hertfordshire Local Plans rather than the 
Objectively Assessed Housing Needs (OAHN).  
 
Further, we would like to raise the issue that the LACW Strategy has not set out the assumptions 
that were used to project future LACW produced. Due to this, it has failed to clarify why it is 
expecting the level of LACW to increase by 2031, even though this has remained relatively stable, 
when the population increased by approximately 20%, between 2004/05-2014/15 (Figure 1).  
 
In line with the PPG, it would be useful for the LACW Spatial Strategy to set out a growth profile of 
waste, the assumed rate that it is produced (as a starting point) for the projections, based upon 
household/population growth and waste per household/per capita.  
 
WHBC supports the LACW waste projections scenario that assumes 65% of waste will be 
recycled or composted by 2031, as a 25% increase was achieved between 2004/5 and 2015/16. 
This will help move waste up the hierarchy, protect the environment and promote sustainable 
development.  
 
Commercial and Industrial Waste (C&I, Issues 9-11) 
 
WHBC considers it appropriate to use the Waste Integrator Data (WDI) to estimate how much C & 
I waste was historically produced but we consider that this approach should be used with caution, 
as it has the potential of overestimating the level of C & I waste produced. We have concerns that 
the estimates that C & I waste increased by 88% between 2011/12-2015/16 (Table 5, CGR) seem 
unlikely during a period of low economic growth. Members consider that Hertfordshire should work 

Page 72



with other waste authorities to lobby government for a more rigorous approach to monitoring 
waste from both this sector and construction demolition and waste. 
 
Whilst WHBC supports the use of the low growth scenario, to project future C & I waste arising to 
2031 recommends that the use of a single East of England Forecasting Modelling (EEFM) 
projections should be treated with caution, as these vary considerably from one run to another and 
that it would be appropriate to look at an average for a 10 year period. Furthermore, regard should 
be had to the employment strategies of respective Local Plans and the extent to which there are 
proposing to meet EEFM forecasts.  
 
Welwyn Hatfield Council supports a 60% target for recycling and composting C & I waste by 2031.  
 
Construction, Demolition and Excavation Waste (CDE, Issues 12-14)  
 
Welwyn Hatfield Council anticipates that the level of CDE waste produced is likely to increase 
during the life of the WLP due to the significant level of housing growth and regeneration that is 
proposed within the Hertfordshire Authorities’ Local Plans. However, we consider that a different 
measure for high growth should be used.          
 
Welwyn Hatfield Council supports the targets to recover 70% of CDE waste by 2020 and divert 
90% of it from landfill by 2031.  
 
Waste Management Capacity (Issue 17)  
 
WHBC support the intention to use a site by site approach, to assess the capacity of existing 
waste facilities for managing future waste arising. However, the assumptions of this assessment 
should be published.  
 
Allocated Sites (Issue 18)      
 
A strategy that allocates sites for waste uses provides greater certainty and therefore is preferable 
to one solely dependent on Areas of Search. However the current Waste Site Allocations Plan 
(2014) allocates eight sites, all of which either failed to come forward for development or deliver 
the type of waste facilities that led to their allocation. Whilst, new waste facilities have been largely 
delivered on windfall sites, through criteria based development management facilities.  
 
Welwyn Hatfield Council considers that as part of this review the County Council needs to carry 
out an analysis of why the existing waste allocations have failed to deliver and whether it would be 
appropriate to release these sites. In addition, this should explore the factors that developers 
consider to determine suitability and deliverability of sites (or locations) for new or enhanced waste 
management facilities. 
 
Areas of Search (Issue 19) 
 
The Waste Core Strategy identified five Area of Search (AOS) for Local Authority Collected 
Waste. Sites have failed to come to meet the need identified in the Core Strategy. The Draft 

Page 73



Capacity Gap Report would indicate that there is still a need for such facilities. As part of the 
review the County Council needs to understand why this Policy approach has failed to deliver to 
date; whether it is the areas in question which are not appropriate; the ‘Areas of Search’ policy 
approach being ineffective; or whether the assessment of the need for such facilities is incorrect; 
or if there is another factor at play.  
 
 
Safeguarding Sites (Issue 22)  
 
Welwyn Hatfield Council supports the option of “safeguarding waste sites with certain exceptions”. 
The exceptional circumstances should allow for instances where an existing use is causing an 
environmental nuisance that cannot be controlled via enforcement action. Additionally, this should 
apply for waste sites with permission that have failed to be implemented (after an appropriate 
period), as they may no longer be suitable to meet the needs of the industry.  
 
Consultation Areas (Issue 23)  
 
Welwyn Hatfield Council supports the principle of identifying waste consultation areas, providing 
they are clearly defined on a GIS layer and are related to the extent of the likely impact. This will 
help ensure non-waste uses are compatible with and do not adversely impact the operations of 
existing waste management facilities, as well as ensure non-waste uses are well designed and 
mitigated.  
 
Employment Land Areas of Search (ELAS, Issue 20)  
  
The principle of identifying employment areas as being suitable for waste management facilities is 
supported, as this will encourage the re-use of previously developed sites, ensure waste 
management facilities are located within proximity to where waste is produced, to promote 
sustainable development. However some employment areas are too small with sensitive receptors 
in close proximity and are therefore likely to be unsuitable for waste management uses. The 
County Council should undertake a review of the suitability of the ELAS identified in the Site 
Allocation Plan Alternatively, a criteria based approach could be formulated, to remove the need to 
identify specific ELAS and would provide the County Council with more flexibility.   
 
List of Policies (Issues 24-27)  
 
WHBC considers it appropriate for the WLP to include strategic and site specific policies for 
different waste streams. This would help provide a higher level of certainty for how much waste 
and the types that need to be managed, the locations, as well as encourage right types of facilities 
in the most appropriate locations and sustainable waste management, as well as minimise any 
potential impacts and deliver the supporting infrastructure.     
 
Programme for producing the Plan 
 
It is considered that following the call for sites there should be a further Regulation 18 stage of 
consultation prior to the publication of the regulation 19 proposed submission document. This will 

Page 74



help ensure any soundness and legal compliance issues in relation to the WLP are resolved at an 
early stage of the plan making process, hence, avoiding any unnecessary delay in its final 
adoption.   
 
 
 
We hope you find the above comments useful for taking WLP forward to the next stage and 
promoting the sustainable waste management of the Hertfordshire wide area. Please do not 
hesitate to contact the Planning Policy team, if you have any further queries in relation to this.  
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Sue Tiley 
 
Planning Policy and Implementation Manager 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Colin Haigh 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
All wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CPPP – 4 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
HOUSING DELIVERY TEST ACTION PLAN 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The Government published its latest housing delivery test results on 19 January 
2021.  It confirmed that Welwyn Hatfield had built 1,450 homes in the period 
2017/18-2019/20 against a target of 2,284.  This equates to 63%.  This means 
that the Council has to prepare an Action Plan to assess the causes of under-
delivery and identify actions to increase delivery in future years. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That CPPP recommends the Housing Delivery Test Action Plan to Cabinet for 
publication. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Paragraph 75 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that 
“Where the housing delivery test indicates that delivery has fallen below 95% of 
the authority’s housing requirement over the previous three years, the authority 
should prepare an action plan in line with national planning guidance, to assess 
the causes of under-delivery and identify actions to increase delivery in future 
years.” 

3.2 The Government published its latest housing delivery test results on 19 January 
2021.  It confirmed that Welwyn Hatfield had built 1,450 homes in the period 
2017/18-2019/20 against a target of 2,284.  This equates to 63%. 

3.3 This has three consequences: 

3.4 Because supply has fallen below 95%, the Council needs to prepare an action 
plan to assess the causes of under-delivery and identify actions to increase 
delivery in future years. 

3.5 Because there has been significant under-delivery of housing over the previous 
three years, the Council needs to add a 20% buffer to its five year housing land 
supply, to improve the prospect of achieving the planned supply. 

3.6 Because supply has fallen below 75%, the Council needs to apply the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development when determining planning 
applications.  The NPPF states that the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development means “granting planning permission unless (i) the application of 
policies in this Framework that protect areas of assets of particular importance 
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or (ii) any 
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a 
whole.”  A footnote advises that the policies referred to in the Framework include 

Page 77

Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2


habitat sites, SSSIs, land designated as green belt, local green spaces, 
irreplaceable habitats, designated heritage assets and areas at risk of flooding. 

3.7 The updated Action Plan reviews the success of actions in the previous Action 
Plan which was published in July 2019 and identifies new actions that can be 
delivered in 2021/22 to further improve housing delivery in the borough. 

4 Legal Implications 

4.1 The preparation of a Housing Delivery Test Action Plan is in accordance with 
national planning legislation and Paragraph 75 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

4.2 As well as helping to identify and assess the causes of under-delivery over the 
previous three years, the Action Plan also helps to identify actions to increase 
deliver in future years and may be helpful in demonstrating that the Council is 
attempting to do so, in respect of future planning decisions and planning appeals. 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 The Action Plan has been prepared by officers within the Policy team.  There are 
no direct financial implications associated with publishing the Action Plan. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risk management implications are that the publication of an Action Plan 
demonstrates that the Council is genuinely seeking to tackle under-delivery and 
identifying actions to increase delivery in the future, which will be helpful in 
respect of future planning decisions and planning appeals. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implications 

7.1 There are no security or terrorism implications associated with this report. 

8 Procurement Implications 

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated with this report. 

9 Climate Change Implications 

9.1 The Council has declared a climate change emergency and set ambitious 
objectives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.  There are no direct climate 
change implications associated with this report.  It will be published online and 
only printed where necessary for those who require a physical copy.  The 
Submitted Local Plan contains policies to ensure that new housing is sustainable. 

10 Human Resources Implications 

10.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications 

11.1 There are no health or wellbeing implications associated with this report. 

12 Communications and Engagement Implications 

12.1 Planning officers are in regular dialogue with landowners and land promoters as 
part of the Local Plan process and in regular dialogue with applicants as part of 
the planning application process.  This means that officers already have a good 
understanding of the issues that frustrate the delivery of new homes. 

Page 78



12.2 There are opportunities for the actions in the Action Plan to be communicated 
with partners, developers and landowners. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 and 
particularly Priority 3 Our Housing to plan for current and future needs. 

14 Equalities and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 

Name of author Colin Haigh 
Title Head of Planning 
Date February 2021 
 
 
Appendices: 
 

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2021 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

March 2021 
 

Page 81



 
 

2 
 

Executive Summary 
 
1. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires councils to prepare an 

action plan where housing delivery has fallen below their housing requirement. 
 
2. This Action Plan seeks to identify the main issues associated with housing delivery in 

the borough and the main actions that can be taken by the Council and other parties 
to speed up delivery. 

 
3. The plan reviews Government guidance, considers the views of relevant 

stakeholders and analyses existing data and other knowledge in order to identify a 
series of actions that will be taken over the coming months and years to help 
increase housing delivery. 

 
4. It is worth noting that housing delivery over 2020 has been greatly impacted by the 

coronavirus pandemic and the closure of many building sites.  The Council has 
continued to provide a planning service with only minimal disruption. 

 
5. In summary these actions are: 
 

 Continue to determine planning applications for housing schemes as fast as 
reasonably possible. 
 

 Apply the presumption in favour of sustainable development when determining 
planning applications for housing schemes. 
 

 Continue to consider the necessity of planning conditions for housing 
permissions. 
 

 Continue to discharge planning conditions for housing schemes as fast as 
reasonably possible. 
 

 Continue to prepare Section 106 agreements as fast as reasonably possible. 
 
 Continue to devise, submit and determine corporate planning applications for 

new housing. 
 

 Work with Hertfordshire County Council to prepare Section 106 agreements 
involving contributions for their services as fast as reasonably possible. 

 
 Work with Hertfordshire Growth Board to identify funding opportunities for 

accelerated housing delivery sites. 
 

 Progress the adoption of the Local Plan. 
 
Introduction 
 
6. Paragraph 75 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that “Where 

the housing delivery test indicates that delivery has fallen below 95% of the 
authority’s housing requirement over the previous three years, the authority should 

Page 82

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2


 
 

3 
 

prepare an action plan in line with national planning guidance, to assess the causes 
of under-delivery and identify actions to increase delivery in future years.” 

 
7. The housing delivery test is an annual measure of housing delivery which compares 

‘total net homes delivered’ against ‘number of homes required’.  Because the Council 
does not have a recently adopted Local Plan the number of homes required in 
Welwyn Hatfield is taken from the Government’s local housing need figures. 

 
8. The Government published the housing delivery test results on 19 January 2021.  It 

confirmed that Welwyn Hatfield had built 1,450 homes in the period 2017/18-2019/20 
against a target of 2,284.  This equates to 63%. 
 

9. This has three consequences: 
 
 Because supply has fallen below 95%, the Council needs to prepare an action 

plan to assess the causes of under-delivery and identify actions to increase 
delivery in future years. 

 
 Because there has been significant under-delivery of housing over the previous 

three years, the Council needs to add a 20% buffer to its five year housing land 
supply, to improve the prospect of achieving the planned supply. 

 
 Because supply has fallen below 75%, the Council needs to apply the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development when determining planning 
applications.  The NPPF states that the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development means “granting planning permission unless (i) the application of 
policies in this Framework that protect areas of assets of particular importance 
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or (ii) any 
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a 
whole.”  A footnote advises that the policies referred to in the Framework 
include habitat sites, SSSIs, land designated as green belt, local green spaces, 
irreplaceable habitats, designated heritage assets and areas at risk of flooding. 

 
Guidance 
 
10. The Government’s Planning Practice Guidance contains useful guidance on the 

housing delivery test.  It advises that action plans should be transparent and publicly 
accessible documents.  It is up to each council whether they consult on their action 
plan but they should be prepared with the involvement of relevant stakeholders such 
as developers, land promoters, landowners, infrastructure providers, neighbouring 
authorities and county councils.  They should be produced in a timely fashion, within 
six months of the test results (so by 19 July 2021).  It identifies issues that councils 
might want to consider and actions that they and other stakeholders might want to 
take. 

 
Consultation 
 
11. The Council has so far included articles about the requirement to prepare an action 

plan in its May 2019 and July 2020 newsletters to everyone registered on the Local 
Plan database (which contains about 2,000 statutory bodies, businesses and 

Page 83

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728523/HDT_Measurement_Rule_Book.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/housing-and-economic-land-availability-assessment#housing-delivery-test


 
 

4 
 

individuals).  This is in addition to ongoing dialogue with landowners through the 
Local Plan process and developers through the development management process. 
  

12. The Council received one response in May 2019 which observed that “The key 
component to reducing the under-delivery of housing within the borough is to ensure 
that you have an adopted Local Plan that allocates sufficient deliverable and 
developable sites to enable targets to be met throughout the plan period.” 
 

Performance 
 
13. Our 2019 Action Plan contained a number of actions to improve our performance in 

the handling and determination of planning applications. 
 

14. The Government sets monitoring targets for 70% of ‘major’ applications to be 
determined within 13 weeks and for 60% of ‘minor’ and ‘other’ applications to be 
determined within 8 weeks, although these timescales can be extended in agreement 
with the applicant.  Councils can be designated as failing if they do not meet or 
exceed these targets over a rolling two year period. 

 
15. For clarification, ‘majors’ are schemes of 10+ homes or 1,000+ sqm of new floor 

area, ‘minors’ are schemes of up to 9 homes or 999 sqm of new floor area and 
‘others’ include householder, listed building and advertisement proposals.  The 
planning service also deals with a significant number of ‘other’ non-countable 
applications such as prior approvals, discharge of conditions, etc and Welwyn 
Garden City estate management applications. 

 
16. In the two year period from March 2018 to March 2020 the Council determined 92% 

of majors, 85% of minors and 89% of other applications within these set timescales 
or by agreed extension.  Performance was strong for major and other applications 
and slightly weaker for minor applications that were refused.  With 74% of these 
determined within the 8 week timescale, this was well above the 60% target and has 
improved compared with the previous two year period (March 2017 – March 2019) 
when 63% were within the target. 

 
17. The Council offers a pre-application advice service that is usually taken up by 

applicants submitting major applications, but not always by those submitting minor 
applications.  Minor housing schemes often raise local concerns, get called-in by 
ward councilors for determination by Development Management Committee and get 
refused.  It is also because minors sometimes generate small but challenging issues 
that officers and applicants seek to overcome, but often find that they are too great. 

 
For period: 
March 2018 
March 2020 

Determined 
 

Approved Refused Declined to 
determine 

 
Total Within 

timescale 
Number Within 

timescale 
 

Number Within 
timescale 

Number 

Majors 
 

71 92% 53 92% 18 89% 0 

Minors 
 

453 85% 333 90% 118 74% 4 

Others 
 

1,739 89% 1,389 90% 350 87% 2 

Page 84



 
 

5 
 

 
Time Taken to Grant Permission 
 
18. In order to better understand the length of the planning determination process and 

build-out rates once permission is granted, the Council analysed a sample of just 
over 600 planning applications for housing received in the period 2000-2015.  The 
results of this analysis have also been compared with data for sites which have more 
recently been granted/completed. 

 
19. The original data showed that on average it takes 2.1 months to determine an 

application without a Section 106 agreement and 9.7 months for an application which 
required a Section 106 agreement.   

 
20. This is reasonably consistent with data over the last three years 2017/18-2019/20, 

which averaged 3.1 months and 9.5 months respectively. 
 

Time Taken to Commence Construction 
 
21. On average the time between permission being granted and construction 

commencing was 13 months.  This was generally consistent regardless of how many 
dwellings had been granted for the site. 

 
Time Taken to Complete Construction 
 
22. On average the time between construction starting and the completion of the last 

dwelling took 10 months to complete, although this varied by the size of the scheme:   
 

Size of Scheme Number of months 
0-4 dwellings 
 

9 months 

5-9 dwellings 
 

11 months 

10-25 dwellings 
 

14 months 

26-100 dwellings 
 

16 months 

101-250 dwellings 
 

27 months 

251+ dwellings 
 

34 months 

 
Overall 

 
23. On average, it takes 2 - 2.5 years from the date a planning application was received 

to the date that construction is completed (although as discussed above this does 
depend on the size of the site and whether a Section 106 agreement was needed).  
The graph below shows that 71% of schemes were completed within 1-2 years of 
being granted. 
 

Page 85



 
 

6 
 

 
 

Section 106 Legal Agreements 
 
24. The 2019 Action Plan contained a number of actions to continue to prepare legal 

agreements as fast as reasonably possible and to work with Hertfordshire County 
Council for legal agreements involving contributions to their services. 
 

25. The Council has contract arrangements with a viability consultancy firm to carry out 
viability appraisal.  This occurs when the applicant prepares a viability appraisal to 
seek to demonstrate that the scheme cannot afford its full policy obligations. 

 
26. The Council has contract arrangements with a legal firm to help prepare legal 

agreements in a timely manner.   
 

27. The Council has liaised with Hertfordshire County Council on a number of occasions 
to discuss the capacity of their legal team to progress agreements in a timely 
manner.  It is understood that a framework arrangement is in place to allow the team 
to call upon external support if resources are stretched. 

 
28. Officers to Welwyn Hatfield and Hertfordshire councils meet on a regular basis to 

identify upcoming issues and resolve live challenges associated with the 
determination and legal confirmation of planning applications. 

 
29. All of these efforts seek to balance the need for speed with the need to ensure that 

applicants make valid contributions to services that will be impacted upon by their 
developments. 

 
Historic and Future Housing Delivery 
 
30. The table below shows the total number of historic completions and approvals in the 

borough since 2001.  Over the last five years delivery has averaged 521 dwellings 
per year, particularly from change of use of offices to residential enabled by national 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Complete Year
Granted

Complete 1 year after
granted

Complete 2 years
since granted

Complete  3 years
since granted

Complete 4 years or
over since granted

Total Sites Small Sites (less than 10 dwellings) Large Sites (10+ dwellings)

Page 86



 
 

7 
 

permitted development rights.  The recent high approval figures relate to the approval 
of Broadwater Road West for 1,454 dwellings in 2018/19 and at Panshanger for 650 
dwellings in 2019/20.   
 

 
 
31. At the end of March 2020, the number of commitments in the Council’s housing 

supply (permissions granted, not yet completed) totalled 3,436 dwellings across 190 
sites. 
 
 Permission Granted: 

construction not 
commenced 

 

Permission Granted: 
under construction 

Total with permission 

Sites 
 

Dwellings Sites Dwellings Sites Dwellings 

Large Sites (10+) 
 

17 2633 13 492 30 3,125 

Small Sites (Below 10) 
 

103 199 57 112 160 311 

Total 120 2,832 70 604 190 3,436 

 
Delayed and Stalled Sites 

 
32. Data from March 2020 identifies that there were some sites in the Council’s housing 

land supply which appear to have stalled or stopped.  These include 217 dwellings 
across 36 planning permissions which were granted more than one year but have not 
yet commenced construction.  There are also 92 dwellings across 15 sites which 
have been under construction for more than 18 months.  The next survey data will be 
available in May 2021. 

 
Lapsed Permissions 

 
33. Lapse rates are historically low, at about 3% of all housing permissions running out of 

time to be built. 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Approvals (exclude superseded) Completions

Page 87



 
 

8 
 

 
Local Plan 
 
34. Our 2019 Action Plan contained an action to progress the adoption of the Local Plan. 

 
35. The Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan was submitted for public examination in May 2017.  

It contained a target to build 12,000 homes in the period 2013-2032, of which about 
half were on brownfield land and half on green belt land. 

 
36. At the time of writing, the Local Plan is still at public examination stage.  The 

Inspector has expressed concern that the plan does not meet the objectively 
assessed need for housing and may not be found sound.   

 
37. In December 2020, the Council used new household projections to judged that its 

objective assessment of need for housing was 13,800 homes and that it could deliver 
13,300 homes over the plan period 2016-2036, plus 700 homes on reserved land. 

 
38. The Inspector has proposed to hold hearing sessions in February and March 2021 to 

consider the new housing need evidence and to examine both newly submitted sites 
and rejected sites around larger villages, to make his own judgement about which are 
the most sustainable choices for allocation and release from the green belt. 

 
39. The Council considers that it is doing all it reasonably can to progress the Local Plan, 

taking account of national aspirations to achieve sustainable development and to limit 
development in the green belt. 

 
40. Adoption of the Local Plan and its policies may release land from the green belt and 

enable planning applications to be submitted and approved for allocated sites. 
 
41. In the meantime however the Council will continue to resist the early consideration of 

green belt sites.  This is because the Inspector has yet to reach a view on the merits 
of proposed green belt sites and to allow all interested parties to debate the merits of 
sites and understand the cumulative implications of sites on their towns and villages.  
The Government has confirmed that housing need alone is not sufficient to justify 
development in the green belt.  Any planning applications that are considered before 
the Local Plan is adopted will need to demonstrate ‘very special circumstances’ in 
order to justify development within the green belt, even allowing for the presumption 
of sustainable development and even if that land is proposed for release. 

 
Other Actions 
 
42. At the time of writing, the Welwyn Hatfield Brownfield Land Register contains 64 sites 

with a combined capacity for 3,987 dwellings. 
 
43. At the time of writing, the Welwyn Hatfield Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding 

Register contains 47 individuals who are seeking a self-build serviced plot. 
 
44. The Welwyn Hatfield Annual Monitoring Report 2019-2020 records that there were 

673 net new homes built in the borough.  The borough has 2.58 years of housing 
land supply based on the Government’s standard method of 875 homes per year, but 
more when tested against the emerging Objective Assessment of Housing Need. 

Page 88

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/localplanexamination
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/brownfieldland
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/selfbuild
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/selfbuild
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/AMR


 
 

9 
 

 
45. The Submitted Local Plan states seeks affordable housing ratios of 25% in Hatfield, 

30% in Welwyn Garden City and 35% in villages.  These targets are based on 
viability evidence that will continue to be updated over the plan period. 

 
46. The Submitted Local Plan states that affordable housing will be sought on all sites of 

11+ new dwellings or 0.5+ hectare sites, subject to viability appraisal.  This means 
that market housing can continue to be delivered where the particular circumstances 
of the site make some or all affordable housing unviable.  The Council is willing and 
has recently worked with applicants where there are viability challenges but an 
associated opportunity to secure Homes England funding for affordable housing. 

 
47. The Submitted Local Plan states that on sites of 100+ dwellings, 2% of dwelling plots 

should be provided to contribute towards meeting the evidence demand for self-build 
and custom housebuilding. 

 
48. The Council is developing its own land holdings in order to increase the supply of all 

types of housing.  This includes the redevelopment of ageing council housing stock 
and underused garage sites. 

 
49. The Council has created a housing company (Now Housing Ltd) that will be better 

able to delivery other forms of social rent that are desirable and affordable for local 
residents. 

 
50. The Council is part of Hertfordshire Growth Board which brings together all eleven 

authorities plus Herts LEP to pursue a growth deal with the Government.  As part of 
this process, the Board has created a Housing and Communities task group which is 
looking at sites that could be put forward for accelerated delivery by receiving 
government funding to help overcome any technical or viability constraints to their 
development.  It is considered that in the order of 4,750 homes could be delivered on 
available urban sites over the next five years.  The Board is also in the process of 
creating a Developer Forum to facilitate countywide debate about the development 
and planning process. 

 
51. The Council has secured £10.6 million of Homes England accelerated construction 

funding to help deliver housing projects in Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield town 
centres.  Many of the sites that received this funding in Hatfield now have planning 
permission and are being built-out. 

 
52. The Council is part of the Hatfield 2030+ Renewal Partnership which has prepared a 

Development Framework and other documents to help identify suitable sites for new 
housing and other types of development.  As an outcome of this work the Council 
has granted planning permission for a number of sites, including 1 Town Centre site 
for 71 new homes, Link Drive car park for 80 new homes and High View 
neighbourhood centre for 146 new homes. 

 
53. The Council has allowed taller buildings and higher densities in sustainable locations, 

such as the Wheat Quarter area in Welwyn Garden City, which has already been 
granted planning permission for 1,454 homes in blocks of up to eight storeys and 
where further planning applications have been submitted to seek to deliver over 
2,000 homes. 

Page 89

https://www.hatfield2030.co.uk/


 
 

10 
 

 
54. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that “Local Planning 

Authorities should consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be 
made acceptable through the use of conditions” but clarifies that “Planning conditions 
should only be imposed where they are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to 
the development to be permitted, enforceable and reasonable in all other respects.”  
The Council does its best to ensure that it only applies planning conditions that meet 
these five tests, in response to issues identified by officers or raised by statutory or 
non-statutory consultees.  Officers will continue to think carefully before applying 
planning conditions to housing permissions. 

 
55. Our 2019 Action Plan contained an action to review the scope for technology and 

modernisation to improve pre-application advice and the handling of planning 
applications.  This aspiration has also been stated in the Planning White Paper.  The 
Council continues to make improvements to its pre-application and planning 
application processes and anticipates that wider opportunities will emerge as digital 
aspirations in the white paper are enacted over coming years.  The costs of a 
bespoke system for Welwyn Hatfield have so far outweighed the perceived benefits. 

 
56. Irrespective of all of the above, officers, councillors, communities and residents all 

want to ensure that housing development is sustainable, high quality and respects 
adjoining land uses and its surroundings. 

 
Projected Future Results 
 
57. The table below shows forecast completions and the estimated housing delivery test 

for the borough next year.  It assumes the adoption of the Local Plan in late 2021 or 
early 2022.  It indicates that the Council will have to prepare another action plan in 
2021, apply a 20% buffer to our five year housing land supply and continue to 
assume the presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

 
Year Forecast 

Completions 
Target Measured Against HDT Result HDT Result 

Consequence 
2016/17 

  
671 544 2012-based projections NA NA 

2017/18 
  

315 623 2014-based projections 88% Action Plan 

2018/19 
  

462 867 Standard Methodology 71% 20% Buffer 

2019/20 
 

673 795* Standard Methodology 63% Presumption 

2020/21 
  

424 875 Standard Methodology 61% Presumption 

* For 2019/20 there was a reduction in the measuring period to 11 months to account for disruption resulting from 
the first national lockdown, Housing Delivery Test: 2020 Measurement - Technical Note, MHCLG.  
 

Page 90


	Agenda
	6 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS
	7 INTRODUCTION OF PARKING RESTRICTIONS, IN TOWN CENTRE CAR PARKS, HATFIELD
	Appendix A Updated
	Alex Star_Redacted
	Alison Wright_Redacted
	Amanda Boxer_Redacted
	Angie Gough_Redacted
	Carl Welch_Redacted
	Charlotte Vaughan_Redacted
	Daniel Deether_Redacted
	Danielle Lister_Redacted
	Davinia Dillon_Redacted
	Debbie McCormack_Redacted
	Georgina Harper Dennett_Redacted
	Hayley Andrews_Redacted
	Hayley Thorne_Redacted
	HCT_Redacted
	Herts AL8 6AE
	NHS FORMAL OBJECTION RE: THE PROPOSAL OF THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS CAR PARKS, HATFIELD) ORDER 2021
	The Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust (HCT) acknowledges that the positive city regeneration changes being made in the Hatfield Town Centre will have a positive impact on the local population.
	However HCT are submitting a formal objection to some of the proposed parking changes which would result in severely hampering the way that the health and wellbeing services are able to be delivered from our Queensway Health Centre in the Hatfield Tow...
	In particular the NHS would like to ensure the following:
	- That the costs of the parking permits e.g. within the new “The Common Multi Storey Car Park” either be free, or at the very least remain at the current price of £50 per year for the NHS Staff who operate at our Queensway Health Centre. HCT understan...
	- Assurance be given that the current demarcated permit parking bays in Kennelwood Lane car park (behind Queensway Health Centre) that is used by the NHS for the clinic will also be continued as per the current arrangement, for the same reasons as above.
	HCT hope that our existing positive and supportive relationship with the  Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council will assist us in finding a workable solution to the parking situation in the Hatfield Town Centre.
	Should you require any further information please feel free to contact me.
	Yours sincerely
	Hannes De Bruin
	Transformation Programme Manager (Estates & Facilities)
	Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust
	E mail: hannes.debruin@nhs.net
	Mobile: 07917594850

	Jess Deether_Redacted
	John Everitt_Redacted
	Judith Lopes Dias_Redacted
	Keith Sheena_Redacted
	Kimberley Lacey_Redacted
	Kirsty Harrison_Redacted
	Louise Noble_Redacted
	Maria Marsh_Redacted
	Michelle Frith_Redacted
	Michelle Frith 1
	Michelle Frith 2

	Nigel Hutton_Redacted
	Sally Sadd_Redacted
	Vicki Willcox_Redacted
	Viki Young_Redacted
	Herts AL8 6AE
	The Hertfordshire Family Centre Service acknowledges that the positive city regeneration changes being made in the Hatfield Town Centre will have a positive impact on the local community.
	However as we are collocated with Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust (HCT) we are submitting a formal objection to some of the proposed parking changes which would result in severely hampering services ability to maintain effective partnership working ...
	In particular the FSS would like to ensure the following:
	- That the costs of the parking permits e.g. within the new “The Common Multi Storey Car Park” either be free, or at the very least remain at the current price of £50 per year for the FSS Staff who operate at our Queensway Health Centre. FSS understan...
	We hope that our existing positive and supportive relationship with the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council will assist us in finding a workable solution to the parking situation in the Hatfield Town Centre.
	Should you require any further information please feel free to contact me.
	Yours sincerely
	Viki Young
	Family Support Manager
	Family Support Service


	Appendix B
	Hatfield CP NOI
	Hatfield CP SOR

	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	DKL - All restrictions. 11th January 2021.
	KWL - All restrictions. 11th January 2021. wout 4ways
	MSCP - GF - All restrictions 12th Jan 21
	HAT-MSCP-Level 1-2-01 - Paid Parking Levels 1-2 Intermediate Levels
	HAT-MSCP-Level 3-01 - Paid Parking Top Deck


	8 NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK - DESIGN CODE CONSULTATION
	9 HERTFORDSHIRE WASTE LOCAL PLAN - DRAFT CONSULTATION
	21-03-04 CPPP Herts Waste Plan Appendix 1 initial consultation response

	10 HOUSING DELIVERY TEST ACTION PLAN
	20-03-04 CPPP HDT Action Plan




